IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. SC01-1185

THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellant/Cross-Appellee,

vs.

JIMMIE LEE CONEY,

Appellee/Cross-Appellant.

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, CRIMINAL DIVISION

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

LISA A. RODRIGUEZ

Assistant Attorney General Florida Bar No. 0109307 Office of the Attorney General Rivergate Plaza -- Suite 950 444 Brickell Avenue Miami, Florida 33131 PH. (305) 377-5441 FAX (305) 377-5654

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

A. TRIAL AND DIRECT APPEAL

This is a State appeal from the lower court's grant, after an evidentiary hearing pursuant to Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.850, of a new sentencing proceeding before a new jury.

On April 25, 1990, Defendant was charged with the first degree murder of Patrick Southworth and first degree arson of an occupied structure. (D.A.R. 1-2).¹ Jury selection began on February 12, 1992, and was concluded on February 14, 1992. (D.A.R. 642-840, 967-1232). Trial began on February 14, 1992. (D.A.R. 1268). On February 26, 1992, the jury returned a guilty verdict as to both charges. (D.A.R. 241-42, 2643).

The penalty phase began on March 9, 1992. (D.A.R. 2656). On March 10, 1992, the jury recommended the imposition of the death penalty by a vote of 7-5. (D.A.R. 288-89, 2296).

A sentencing hearing was held on March 27, 1992. (D.A.R. 2897-2919). On March 27, 1992, Defendant was sentenced to thirty years in prison for arson charge, consecutive to the death sentence to imposed on the murder charge. (D.A.R. 308-10, 2917-19). In a written sentencing order, the trial court found the following aggravating circumstances:

¹ The terms "D.A.R." and "D.A.T." will be used to refer to the record and transcript prepared on direct appeal in *Coney v. State*, Florida Supreme Court case no. 80, 072. The terms "R." and "T." refer to the record and transcript in the instant post-conviction appeal.

1. The capital felony was committed by a person under sentence of imprisonment.

2. The defendant was previously convicted of another capital felony or of a felony involving the use or threat of violence to the person.

3. The defendant knowingly created a great risk of death to many persons.

4. The murder was committed while the defendant was engaged in the commission of an arson.

5. The murder was especially heinous, atrocious or cruel.

(D.A.R 312-316). The trial court considered all statutory mitigating circumstances and found them to be inapplicable. (D.A.R. 316). The trial court also considered the non-statutory mitigation evidence presented by Defendant and concluded that the evidence presented in no way mitigated the acts of Defendant in the instant case. (D.A.R. 316). Accordingly, the trial court sentenced Defendant to death. (D.A.R. 316).

On direct appeal, the Florida Supreme Court found the following historical facts of the instant crimes:

Jimmie Coney set his putative jailhouse lover ablaze. Coney was incarcerated in the Dade Correctional Institution (DCI) serving a 420-year sentence for sexual battery, robbery, burglary with assault,

and attempted murder, all arising from the assault of a twelve-year old girl in 1976. While at DCI, Coney's homosexual lover, Patrick Southworth, spurned him. Coney obtained а key to Southworth's cell, entered at about 5 a.m., April 6, 1990, doused him with a flammable liquid, and set him afire. Southworth was burned over a large portion of his body, remained consciousness, and died the following day. No one saw the crime take place except Southworth, who awoke when the liquid was splashed on him. An empty "butt can" was found under Southworth's bunk, and а shoebox containing empty soda cans, tissue paper, and cell keys was found in a garbage the fire. The container near cans contained trace amounts of a flammable liquid and the keys fit Southworth's cell door.

A prison official testified at trial that Southworth told him shortly after he was burned that when he felt the liquid poured on him he looked up and saw James He said Coney set him on fire Coney. because he, Southworth, is a homosexual. paramedic who treated The the victim testified that Southworth told him that his set him fire lover on because he Southworth, left him. The prison officer who accompanied Southworth to the hospital testified that Southworth told him that Jimmie Coney did it because he, Southworth, would no longer have sex with him.

Inmate Young testified that a week before the murder Coney asked him to get some lacquer thinner from the prison auto Young gave him the liquid in a soda shop. Inmate Hoover testified that Coney can. and Southworth were often seen together touching and that Coney introduced Southworth to Hoover as "his boy," i.e., his homosexual lover. On the day before the murder, Coney seemed angry at

Southworth and told Hoover, "I'm going to get that motherfucker.... I'm going to burn his ass." Coney's cellmate, inmate Jones, testified that at 4 a.m. on the night of the murder, Coney awoke, took the shoebox later found near the fire from under his bed, poured paint thinner from two soda cans into a 'butt can," left the cell, and returned later announcing, "I got the key."

Coney v. State, 653 So.2d 1009, 1010-11 (Fla. 1995).

On appeal, Defendant raised the following grounds for relief:

I.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN DENYING THE DEFENSE REQUEST FOR A JURY INSTRUCTION ON WEIGHING THE EVIDENCE OF DYING DECLARATIONS, IN VIOLATION OF THE CONFRONTATION CLAUSES OF THE FLORIDA AND UNITED STATES CONSTITUTIONS.

II.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN ALLOWING THE STATE TO INTRODUCE INTO EVIDENCE OVER DEFENSE OBJECTION STATEMENTS MADE BY THE DECEDENT CONCERNING HIS OPINION AS TO THE MOTIVE OF [DEFENDANT], IN VIOLATION OF THE CONFRONTATION CLAUSES OF THE FLORIDA AND UNITED SATES CONSTITUTION.

III.

[DEFENDANT]'S INVOLUNTARY ABSENCE FROM A NUMBER OF CRUCIAL STAGES OF THE TRIAL REQUIRES REVERSAL OF HIS JUDGMENTS OF CONVICTION AND SENTENCE OF DEATH AS HIS ABSENCE THWARTED THE FUNDAMENTAL FAIRNESS OF THE PROCEEDINGS, IN VIOLATION OF FLA.R.CRIM.P. 3.180 AND THE DUE PROCESS CLAUSES OF THE FLORIDA AND UNITED STATES CONSTITUTIONS.

IV.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN RESTRICTING DEFENSE COUNSEL'S QUESTIONING OF PROSPECTIVE JURORS, IN VIOLATION OF [DEFENDANT]'S RIGHT TO A FAIR AND IMPARTIAL JURY GUARANTEED BY THE FLORIDA AND UNITED STATES CONSTITUTIONS.

v.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN VARIOUS OTHER RULINGS MADE DURING THE COURSE OF THE TRIAL.

VI.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN ALLOWING THE STATE TO CALL THE MOTHER OF THE VICTIM OF [DEFENDANT]'S PRIOR VIOLENT FELONY OFFENSE TO THE TESTIFY AT THE PENALTY PHASE CONCERNING THE HORRORS SHE EXPERIENCED WHEN SHE ARRIVED HOME TO FIND HER DAUGHTER AFTER SHE HAD BEEN BRUTALLY RAPED AND STRANGLED, IN VIOLATION OF THE DUE PROCESS CLAUSES OF THE FLORIDA AND UNITED STATES CONSTITUTIONS, AND THE EIGHTH AMENDMENT TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION.

VII.

THE PROSECUTOR'S ARGUMENT TO THE JURY DURING THE PENALTY PHASE REPEATEDLY URGING THEM TO CONSIDER THE IMPACT AND MESSAGE THEIR SENTENCE RECOMMENDATION WOULD HAVE ON THE COMMUNITY WAS IMPROPER AND INFLAMMATORY AND CONSTITUTED A NONSTATUTORY AGGRAVATING FACTOR, IN VIOLATION OF FLORIDA LAW AND THE EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION.

VIII.

[DEFENDANT]'S SENTENCE OF DEATH IS UNCONSTITUTIONAL AND DISPROPORTIONAL ТΟ SENTENCES OF SIMILARLY LIFE SITUATED DEFENDANTS CONVICTED OF MURDERS INVOLVING DOMESTIC DISPUTES, IN VIOLATION OF FLORIDA EIGHTH LAW AND THEAND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS ТΟ THEUNITED STATES CONSTITUTION.

IX.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN IMPOSING THE DEATH PENALTY BASED UPON THE AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCE THAT THE DEFENDANT KNOWINGLY CREATED A GREAT RISK OF DEATH TO MANY PERSONS, IN VIOLATION OF FLORIDA LAW AND THE EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION.

Х.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN FAILING TO FIND WEIGH ANY NONSTATUTORY AND MITIGATING CIRCUMSTANCES WHERE THEUNCONTROVERTED EVIDENCE PRESENTED AT THE PENALTY PHASE ESTABLISHED A SUBSTANTIAL NUMBER OF VALID NONSTATUTORY MITIGATING CIRCUMSTANCES, ΙN VIOLATION OF FLORIDA LAW AND THE EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTIONS.

This Court affirmed Defendant's conviction and sentence in its opinion issued on January 5, 1995, after striking the great risk of death to many persons aggravator. *Coney v. State*, 653 So.2d at 1011 n. 2. Rehearing was denied on April 27, 1995.

On or about March 24, 1997, Defendant filed a motion for post-conviction relief reserving the right to amend the motion

following receipt of documents requested pursuant to Rule 3.852 of the Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure and Chapter 119 of the Florida Statutes. Defendant filed his Amended Motion to Vacate Judgments of Conviction and Sentence on or about August 5, 1999. (D.A.R. 21-155) In his Amended Motion to Vacate, Defendant raised the following claims, verbatim:

CLAIM I

[DEFENDANT] IS BEING DENIED HIS RIGHTS TO DUE PROCESS AND EQUAL PROTECTION AS GUARANTEED BY THE EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH то UNITED AMENDMENTS THE STATES CONSTITUTION AND THE CORRESPONDING PROVISIONS OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION, BECAUSE ACCESS TO THE FILES AND RECORDS PERTAINING TO [DEFENDANT]'S CASE IN THE POSSESSION OF CERTAIN STATE AGENCIES HAVE BEEN WITHHELD IN VIOLATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLA. STAT., AND RULE 3.852, FLORIDA RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE.

CLAIM II

[DEFENDANT]'S RIGHTS UNDER THE FIFTH, SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AND THE CORRESPONDING PROVISIONS OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION WERE VIOLATED BY COUNSEL'S DEFICIENCIES OR BEING RENDERED INEFFECTIVE BY STATE ACTION.

CLAIM III

[DEFENDANT] WAS DENIED A FAIR ADVERSARIAL TESTING AT THE GUILT PHASE OF HIS CAPITAL TRIAL. EVIDENCE NOT PRESENTED TO [DEFENDANT]'S JURY DUE TO STATE MISCONDUCT AND DEFENSE COUNSEL'S INEFFECTIVENESS, FAILURE BY DEFENSE COUNSEL TO PROPERLY INVESTIGATE AND TO CROSS-EXAMINE WITNESSES, AS WELL AS EVIDENCE THAT IS NEWLY DISCOVERED, PROVES THAT [DEFENDANT] IS INNOCENT. [DEFENDANT] WAS DENIED HIS RIGHT TO A FAIR TRIAL BECAUSE THE JURY DID NOT RECEIVE THE NECESSARY INFORMATION TO ASSESS HIS GUILT OR INNOCENCE, IN VIOLATION OF THE FIFTH, SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS OF THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AND THE CORRESPONDING PROVISIONS OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION.

CLAIM IV

[DEFENDANT] WAS DENIED HIS RIGHTS TO THE EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL AND MENTAL HEALTH EXPERTS AT THE GUILT/INNOCENCE AND SENTENCING PHASES OF HIS CAPITAL TRIAL, WHEN CRITICAL INFORMATION REGARDING [DEFENDANT]'S MENTAL STATE WAS NOT PROVIDED TO THE JURY AND JUDGE, ALL IN VIOLATION OF [DEFENDANT]'S RIGHTS TO DUE PROCESS AND EQUAL PROTECTION UNDER THE FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT OF THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION, AS WELL AS HIS RIGHTS UNDER THE FIFTH, SIXTH, AND EIGHTH AMENDMENTS.

CLAIM V

[DEFENDANT] WAS DENIED THE EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL AT THE SENTENCING PHASE OF HIS TRIAL IN VIOLATION OF THE SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS. TRIAL COUNSEL WAS RENDERED INEFFECTIVE BY THE TRIAL COURT'S AND STATE'S ACTIONS. TRIAL COUNSEL FAILED TO ADEQUATELY INVESTIGATE AND PREPARE MITIGATING EVIDENCE, FAILED TO PROVIDE THE MENTAL HEALTH EXPERTS WITH THIS MITIGATION, AND FAILED TO ADEQUATELY CHALLENGE THE STATE'S CASE AND TO OBJECT TO UNCONSTITUTIONAL JURY INSTRUCTIONS AND TO ADEQUATELY OBJECT TO EIGHTH AMENDMENT ERROR. COUNSEL'S PERFORMANCE WAS DEFICIENT, AND AS A RESULT, [DEFENDANT]'S DEATH SENTENCE IS UNRELIABLE.

CLAIM VI

[DEFENDANT] WAS ABSENT FROM CRITICAL STATES OF THE TRIAL IN VIOLATION OF HIS SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION.

CLAIM VII

[DEFENDANT] IS DENIED HIS FIRST, SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS [sic] TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AND THE CORRESPONDING PROVISIONS OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION AND IS DENIED EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL IN PURSUING HI POST-CONVICTION REMEDIES BECAUSE OF THE RULES PROHIBITING [DEFENDANT]'S LAWYERS FROM INTERVIEWING JURORS TO DETERMINE IF JUROR MISCONDUCT OR OTHER CONSTITUTIONAL ERROR WAS PRESENT.

CLAIM VIII

[DEFENDANT] IS DENIED HIS RIGHTS UNDER THE EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS OF THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AND UNDER THE CORRESPONDING PROVISIONS OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION BECAUSE EXECUTION BY ELECTROCUTION IS CRUEL AND/OR UNUSUAL PUNISHMENT.

CLAIM IX

FLORIDA'S CAPITAL SENTENCING STATUTE IS UNCONSTITUTIONAL ON ITS FACE AS APPLIED IN THIS CASE, BECAUSE IT FAILS TO PREVENT THE ARBITRARY AND CAPRICIOUS IMPOSITION OF THE DEATH PENALTY.

CLAIM X

THE EIGHTH AMENDMENT WAS VIOLATED BY THE SENTENCING COURT'S REFUSAL TO FIND AND/OR CONSIDER THE MITIGATING CIRCUMSTANCES CLEARLY SET OUT IN THE RECORD.

CLAIM XI

THE FLORIDA SUPREME COURT FAILED TO CONDUCT A CONSTITUTIONALLY ADEQUATE HARMLESS ERROR ANALYSIS ON DIRECT APPEAL AFTER STRIKING AN AGGRAVATING FACTOR.

CLAIM XII

[DEFENDANT]'S DEATH SENTENCE IS PREDICATED UPON AN AUTOMATIC AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCE, CONTRARY TO THE EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS. TO THE EXTENT TRIAL COUNSEL FAILED TO KNOW THE LAW, FAILED TO ARGUE EFFECTIVELY, AND/OR FAILED TO OBJECT, TRIAL COUNSEL WAS INEFFECTIVE.

CLAIM XIV

TRIAL COUNSEL WAS BURDENED BY AN ACTUAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST ADVERSELY AFFECTING COUNSEL'S REPRESENTATION, IN VIOLATION OF THE SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS AND THE CORRESPONDING PROVISIONS OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION.

CLAIM XV

[DEFENDANT] IS INSANE TO BE EXECUTED.

CLAIM XVI

[DEFENDANT]'S SENTENCING JURY WAS MISLED BY THE COMMENTS, QUESTIONS, AND INSTRUCTIONS THAT UNCONSTITUTIONALLY AND INACCURATELY DILUTED THE JURY'S SENSE OF RESPONSIBILITY TOWARDS SENTENCING IN VIOLATION OF THE EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION. TRIAL COUNSEL WAS INEFFECTIVE FOR NOT PROPERLY OBJECTING.

CLAIM XVII

[DEFENDANT]'S TRIAL WAS FRAUGHT WITH PROCEDURAL AND SUBSTANTIVE ERRORS WHICH CANNOT BE HARMLESS WHEN VIEWED AS A WHOLE, SINCE THE COMBINATION OF ERRORS DEPRIVED HIM OF THE FUNDAMENTALLY FAIR TRIAL GUARANTEED UNDER THE SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS.

CLAIM XVIII

[DEFENDANT] IS BEING DENIED HIS RIGHT TO EFFECTIVE REPRESENTATION BY THE LACK OF FUNDING AVAILABLE TO FULLY INVESTIGATE AND PREPARE HIS POST-CONVICTION PLEADINGS, UNDERSTAFFING, AND THE UNPRECEDENTED WORKLOAD ON PRESENT COUNSEL AND STAFF, IN VIOLATION OF HIS SIXTH, EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT RIGHTS UNDER THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AND IN VIOLATION OF SPALDING V. DUGGER.

CLAIM XIX

[DEFENDANT]'S DEATH SENTENCE IS FUNDAMENTALLY UNFAIR AND UNRELIABLE, IN VIOLATION OF THE FIFTH, SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS DUE TO THE STATE'S INTRODUCTION OF NON-STATUTORY AGGRAVATING FACTORS AND THE STATE'S ARGUMENTS UPON NON-STATUTORY AGGRAVATING FACTORS. DEFENSE COUNSEL'S FAILURE TO OBJECT OR ARGUE EFFECTIVELY CONSTITUTED INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE.

CLAIM XX

[DEFENDANT] WAS DENIED A FAIR AND IMPARTIAL TRIAL IN VIOLATION OF THE FIFTH, SIXTH, EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AND THE ANALOGOUS PROTECTIONS WITHIN THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION, BECAUSE THE TRIAL COURT PERMITTED THE STATE TO INTRODUCE GRUESOME AND SHOCKING PHOTOGRAPHS.

CLAIM XXI

[DEFENDANT]'S GUILTY VERDICT AND JURY RECOMMENDED DEATH SENTENCE ARE CONSTITUTIONALLY UNRELIABLE IN VIOLATION OF EIGHTH, THE SIXTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS, BECAUSE TRIAL THECOURT ERRONEOUSLY INSTRUCTED [DEFENDANT]'S JURY ON THE STANDARD BY WHICH THEY MUST JUDGE EXPERT TESTIMONY. THE JURY MADE DECISIONS LAW THAT SHOULD HAVE BEEN WITH THE OF PROVINCE OF THE COURT.

CLAIM XXII

[DEFENDANT] WAS DENIED HIS RIGHT TO A FAIR TRIAL AND SENTENCING BEFORE AN IMPARTIAL JUDGE IN VIOLATION OF HIS FIFTH, SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT RIGHTS. THE IMPROPER CONDUCT OF JUDGE SMITH CREATED A BIAS IN FAVOR OF THE STATE AND RENDERED RULINGS CONTRARY TO THE LAW.

(R. 21-155) The lower court conducted a hearing pursuant to *Huff v. State*, 762 So. 2d 476 (Fla. 2000). (D.A.R. 372-73) After hearing argument, the lower court granted an evidentiary hearing on claims IV and V, and, to the extent it bore on the issues raised in claims IV and V, the conflict of interest claim in claim XIV. The lower court conducted a three day evidentiary hearing on December 13-15, 2000. (D.A.R. 580-693, 694-826, 827-933, 934-1060, 1061-1271)

At the evidentiary hearing, Defendant's trial counsel, Manuel Casabielle, testified that he was employed at the Dade County State Attorney's Office for three years prior to working in a private firm that specialized in criminal defense. (R. 450-01, 586) Mr. Casabielle further testified he had practiced as a criminal defense lawyer for fourteen years, formed his own criminal defense firm with a partner and later opened a solo practice. (R. 451, 587) Mr. Casabielle had tried between 150 and 200 criminal trials in his career, including approximately four capital cases. (R. 587) Prior to Defendant's case, Mr. Casabielle had tried a capital case to the penalty phase, as well as a second degree murder case.² (R. 451-54, 587)

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