IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. SC01-1185

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellant,

v.

JIMMIE LEE CONEY,

Appellee/Cross-Appellant.

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN AND FOR MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, STATE OF FLORIDA

ANSWER/CROSS-INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

WILLIAM M. HENNIS, III Assistant CCRC Florida Bar No. 0066850

OFFICE OF THE CAPITAL COLLATERAL REGIONAL COUNSEL 101 N.E. 3RD. AVE., SUITE 400 Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301 (954) 713-1284 COUNSEL FOR APPELLEE/CROSS-

APPELLANT

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

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

have existed (R. 85-86). The State lost the bags if they ever existed and as such failed to preserve evidence.¹²

Trial counsel was ineffective for failure to object to improper prosecutorial argument at the conclusion of the guilt phase (DAT. 2526, 2549, 2560, 2604, 2610, 2611)(R. 86-88). The prosecutor's closing arguments were improper, and defense counsel unreasonably failed to object, to Mr. Coney's prejudice. <u>See Ruiz v. State</u> 24 Fla. L. Weekly S157 (Fla. 1999)(Where prosecutors engaged in egregious misconduct during closing argument in both guilt and penalty phases of trial)(Prosecutor invites the jury to

 $^{^{12}}$ Mr. Coney plead in his 3.850 motion that several handwritten notes from Major John Richard Thompson that were drafted after his interview with Southworth in the treatment room at DCI indicate that Southworth told him that Santerfeit had to have been involved in opening the door to the cell when he was burned (R. 86). The motion also claims that a second note with more details also indicates Santerfeit's involvement. However, the final typewritten report of the investigation fails to mention Santerfeit, and names Coney as the guilty party. These notes should have been disclosed to trial counsel pursuant to <u>Brady v. Maryland</u>, 373 U.S. 83 (1963), yet the state failed to disclose them. They were clearly material both as to guilt and punishment.

convict [Coney] of first degree murder because he is a liar).

Defense counsel was also ineffective when he failed to object to guilt phase instruction "Rules for Deliberation 2.05" Number 5, including the language "[i]t is the judge's job to determine what a proper sentence would be if the defendant is guilty" (DAR. 236 & 2632). The jury is co-sentencer in Florida.¹³

The order of the lower court summarily denying a hearing on these claims found that trial counsel's guilt phase "performance at trial fell within the 'broad range of reasonably competent performance under prevailing professional standards' <u>Maxwell v. Wainwright</u>, 490 So. 2d 927 (Fla. 1986) at 932." (R. 1340).

E. ABSENT FROM CRITICAL STAGES OF THE PROCEEDINGS

The lower court's order found that Mr. Coney's claim that he was absent from critical stages of the proceedings is procedurally barred (R. 1341). The lower court's

¹³<u>See</u>: <u>Apprendi v. New Jersey</u> 530 U.S. 466 (2000).

finding of a procedural bar is incorrect, as the claim was premised on the failure to object, which is cognizable in postconviction proceedings. Mr. Casabielle repeatedly waived Mr. Coney's presence during significant events in the trial and pre-trial period (DAT. 389, 409-411, 691, 694-96, 721-28, 1081-85). Mr. Coney was absent during a long discussion between the State, the trial court and Mr. Casabielle, concerning the lack of preparation for a potential penalty phase (DAT. 389-420).¹⁴ Mr. Coney was also absent from other critical phases of his capital trial proceedings, to his substantial prejudice. This Court held on direct appeal that although Mr. Coney was improperly kept from participating in bench conferences during jury selection, any error in this regard was harmless. <u>Coney v. State</u> 653 So. 2d 1009 (Fla. 1995). In light of Argument II concerning the conflict of interest claim and the failure of Casabielle to inform Mr. Coney

¹⁴The lower court found that "At that time, Mr. Casabielle affirmatively stated that a psychological evaluation of the defendant <u>had been</u> conducted. It appears that this statement was not true" (R. 1329).

about his involvement in Operation Court Broom during voir dire or at any other time, counsel respectfully suggests that this Court review that harmless error analysis. This Court's failure to undertake a proper harmless error analysis was error on numerous levels. Mr. Coney had a right to meaningful direct appellate review by this Court of his conviction and sentence of death. <u>Parker v.</u> <u>Dugger</u>, 498 U.S. 308 (1992).

All the information discussed in this claim goes not only to the guilt-innocence phase, but also undermines the jury's 7 to 5 death recommendation. Under this analysis, relief is required if confidence in the outcome of the case is undermined.

ARGUMENT IV - PUBLIC RECORDS

Mr. Coney sought public records disclosure pursuant to chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.852. The lower court summarily denied this claim (R. 1344). On January 22, 1999, by written order, the lower court sustained the objections of the Office of the State Attorney, Eleventh Judicial Circuit, to production of

certain documents in spite of a valid claim by Mr. Coney that the State had waived the right to object due to a late filed response. (Supp. R. 746-48, 768-69). The order states that the lower court sealed the records in the court file for appellate review in two large envelopes marked as Exhibits A & B after an in camera inspection. Attached to this order was a copy of a letter from the State Attorney to CCRC dated October 2, 1998, describing the material which the lower court's order ordered sealed for appellate purposes.¹⁵ The letter states that the documents submitted by the State Attorney included 436 pages of material concerning the instant case, 75 pages concerning Mr. Coney's 1976 prior and 45 pages of material 1965 prior. This concerning his Court should independently review these materials to determine if Mr. Coney is entitled to them.

¹⁵Although the order references the attached letter, it is apparently not part of the supplemental record provided to undersigned counsel on April 8, 2002. By separate motion counsel is moving to supplement the record with this document.

Also sealed in the record for appellate purposes following in camera inspections are documents from the Brevard County State attorney concerning a hospital admission in January 1989 of witness Gregory Hoover; documents from the State Attorney, Sixth Judicial Circuit, concerning inmate Chris Rusaw; and documents from the Department of Corrections Florida medical and psychological records concerning inmate trial witnesses Santerfeit, Barnes, Hoover, Jones and Young (Supp. R. 770), (Supp. R. 821-23, 828), (Supp. R. 360-66, 778-80, This Court should independently review these 824). materials to determine if Mr. Coney is entitled to them. Any documents contained in these sealed records which could form the basis of a claim on behalf of Mr. Coney should be disclosed and Mr. Coney should be permitted to amend.

ARGUMENT V - NO ADVERSARIAL TESTING AT THE PENALTY PHASE A. THE FLORIDA STATUTE IS UNCONSTITUTIONAL

Florida's capital sentencing scheme denies Mr. Coney

his right to due process of law and constitutes cruel and unusual punishment on its face and as applied in this The Supreme Court has held that the death penalty case. may not be imposed under sentencing procedures that create substantial risk of arbitrary and capricious а Furman v. Georgia, 408 U.S. 238 (1972). application. Florida's death penalty statute is constitutional only to the extent that it prevents arbitrary imposition of the death penalty and narrows application of the penalty to offenders. Florida's statute fails the worst to adequately channel the jury's discretion as required by Supreme Court precedent. Because of the arbitrary and capricious application of Florida's death penalty, the statute as it exists and as applied is unconstitutional under the Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution. See Callins v. Collins, 510 U.S. 1141 (1994) (Blackmun, J., dissenting) ("despite the effort of the States and courts to devise legal formulas and procedural rules to meet this daunting challenge, the death penalty remains fraught with arbitrariness,

discrimination, caprice, and mistake."). Mr. Coney's death sentence violates the Eighth Amendment.

B. FAILURE BY THE LOWER COURT TO FIND NON-STATUTORY MITIGATION

During his 1992 capital sentencing hearing Mr. Coney presented evidence of mitigation which the trial court refused to find. The jury and judge, acting as cosentencers, were required to weigh these mitigating factors against the aggravating circumstances. According to her sentencing order the judge did not weigh this mitigation, stating that evidence presented by Mr. Coney "certainly in no way bears upon or mitigates the depravity of the defendants acts" (DAT. 315). The judge erred as a matter of law in not considering and weighing the unrefuted mitigation presented at the trial below through defense witnesses Pearl Mae Sanford, Bonny Coney, Virginia Lee Coney, Jessie Coney, Elaine Sanford Harrell, Fred Lee Thomas, Barbara Fontenot, and Rev. Wellington Ferguson, Sr. (DAT. 2735-2853).

Mr. Coney was deprived of the individualized

sentencing required by the Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments and is entitled to a new sentencing hearing. <u>Skipper v. South Carolina</u>, 476 U.S. 1 (1986); <u>see also</u> <u>Zant v. Stephens</u>, 462 U.S. 862, 879 (1983); <u>Eddings v.</u> <u>Oklahoma</u>, 455 U.S. 104, 110-112 (1982); <u>Lockett v. Ohio</u>, 438 U.S. 586 (1978).

C. JOHNSON V. MISSISSIPPI

Ιt was a violation of the Fifth, Eighth, and Fourteenth Amendments for either the jury or the trial court to consider Mr. Coney's prior convictions, as they were unconstitutionally obtained. See Johnson v. Mississippi, 108 S. Ct. 1981 (1988). This reversible error committed infected the penalty phase of the instant case resulting in an unreliable jury recommendation and death sentence, and further resulted in cruel and unusual punishment. The lower court held that this claim cannot be raised for the first time on collateral review pursuant to <u>Henderson v. Dugger</u>, 522 So. 2d 835 (Fla. 1988). (R. 1342).

D. AUTOMATIC AGGRAVATOR

Mr. Coney's jury was unconstitutionally instructed to consider an automatic aggravating factor: "The crime for which the defendant is to be sentenced was committed while he was engaged in the commission of or in an attempt to commit the crime of arson" (DAT. 3830). Mr. Coney was indicted on alternate theories of felony (arson) murder (DAR. and premeditated murder 1-2). The jury's consideration of this aggravating circumstance violated Mr. Coney's Eighth and Fourteenth Amendment rights because it jury to consider allowed the an aggravating circumstance which applied automatically to Mr. Coney's case once the jury had convicted Mr. Coney under the theory of felony murder during the guilt phase of the trial.

The use of the underlying felony -- arson -- as a basis for any aggravating factor, rendered the aggravating circumstances "illusory" in violation of <u>Stringer v.</u> <u>Black</u>, 112 S. Ct. 1130 (1992). Due to the outcome of the guilt phase, the jury's consideration of automatic aggravating circumstances served as a basis for Mr.

Coney's death sentence. This was error and Mr. Coney is entitled to relief.

To the extent that this issue was inadequately preserved by trial counsel Mr. Coney was denied effective assistance of counsel. Mr. Coney's sentence of death is the resulting prejudice. <u>Harris v. Dugger</u>, 874 F.2d 756 (11th Cir. 1989).

E. CALDWELL CLAIM

Mr. Coney's jury was repeatedly and unconstitutionally instructed by the Court that its role was merely "advisory." <u>See</u>, <u>e.q.</u>, (DAR. 236, DAT.2883, 2884). The jury's sense of responsibility was diminished by the misleading comments and instructions regarding the jury's This diminution of role. the jury's sense of responsibility violated the eighth amendment. <u>Caldwell v.</u> Mississippi, 472 U.S. 320 (1985). To the extent counsel failed to object and litigate this issue, request curative instructions, and move for mistrial, counsel rendered deficient performance. Confidence in the outcome is undermined. This Court must order a new sentencing

proceeding.

F. PROSECUTORIAL MISCONDUCT

In Mr. Coney's trial during closing argument at both the guilt and penalty phases the State made impermissible and inflammatory arguments based on the impact to the victims of the crimes that resulted in Mr. Coney's prior convictions (DAT. 2861-62). The State also argued improperly at the penalty phase, comparing victim Patrick Southworth to a self-immolating monk in 1960s Vietnam (DAT. 2865); Band also argued lack of remorse (DAT. 2864) and future dangerousness (DAT. 2868), and improperly implied that it was the jury's duty as community representatives to impose the death penalty (DAT. 2868). The jury were misled by Mr. Band's improper, impermissible and inflammatory comments. See Ruiz v. State 24 Fla. L. Weekly S157, 1999 WL 176049 (Fla.). The State was also allowed to introduce over defense objection gruesome photographs, including autopsy photos of the deceased and photos of the victims of Mr. Coney's prior violent felonies in 1965 and 1976 during the penalty phase. (DAT.

2664, 2665-66, 2679-87, 2723-24). The lower court held that this issue was resolved on direct appeal and is procedurally barred (R. 1343).

The trial court's error in admitting these photographs cannot be considered harmless beyond a reasonable doubt. <u>Chapman v. California</u>, 87 S. Ct. 824 (1967); <u>State v.</u> <u>DiGuilio</u>, 491 So. 2d 1129 (Fla. 1986). To the extent that trial counsel failed to adequately raise this issue, Mr. Coney was denied the effective assistance of counsel.

ARGUMENT VI - INNOCENT OF THE DEATH PENALTY

Based on the arguments in this brief, Mr. Coney can show either actual innocence of first degree murder or innocence of the death penalty and is entitled to relief for constitutional errors which resulted in the conviction or sentence of death. <u>Sawyer v. Whitley</u>, 112 S. Ct. 2514 (1992).¹⁶

ARGUMENT VII - INSANE TO BE EXECUTED

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